
 
 

 
APPROVED - Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 
2018-12-11 Regular Meeting of the Board 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 (Arrow Lakes) 
 

 
MINUTES 

School Board Office Date: Tuesday December 11, 2018  
7:00 pm 

PRESENT 
 
TRUSTEES: L. Brekke, M. Teindl, C. Dixon, D. Simon, R. Farrell 
 
STAFF:  T. Taylor, M. Grenier, L. Newman, S. Woolf  
 
OTHERS:  
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: 

 
M. Teindl called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm.  
 
Acknowledgement of Territory 
 

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 
 

Moved by D. Simon, seconded by R. Farrell that the agenda be adopted as presented. 
 

CARRIED 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES: 

 
Moved by L. Brekke, seconded by C. Dixon that the minutes of the Special Regular Meeting of 
November 20, 2018 be adopted as presented.  

CARRIED 
 

Moved by R. Farrell, seconded by D. Simon that the minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 20, 
2018 be adopted as presented.  

CARRIED 
 

4. PRESENTATIONS 
Nil  
 

5. DISPOSITION OF PREVIOUS PRESENTATIONS 
Nil  

 
 
 



 
 

 
APPROVED - Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 
2018-12-11 Regular Meeting of the Board 
 

6. FINANCIAL UPDATE: (S.Woolf) 
 
a) November 30, 2018 Financial Report (report attached) 

 
b) 2017-2018 SOFI Report (report attached) 

 
Moved by L. Brekke, seconded by D. Simon that the Board of Education for School District 10 (Arrow 
Lakes) approve the 2017-2018 SOFI Report as presented and as attached.  

 
c) SOFI Cover Report (report attached) 

 
7. QUESTIONS REGARDING FINANCIAL 

Nil  
 

8. REPORTS 
 

a) Chairperson: 
i. Report attached  

 
b) Education Partnership Committee 

 
A recommendation from the Education Partnership Committee was brought forward to the 
Board for consideration. 

 
Moved by R. Farrell, seconded by D. Simon that the Board of Education for School District 10 
(Arrow Lakes) advocate with RCMP and our communities to address the current student 
safety issues as shared, including vehicles speeding in school zones, vehicles passing school 
busses.  

CARRIED 
 

c) Parent Advisory Council / Trustee Liaison Reports: 
 

i) Southern Zone (D. Simon) 
• No report from EES PAC 
• BES PAC is registered as the Burton Elementary School PAC  
• Discussed Christmas Concern Pot Luck on December 20, 22018 
• Discussed getting ‘school zone’ signage and ‘children playing nearby’ signage 

installed 
• Milk program started  
• Working on getting planners for students to assist with communication between 

students and parents and teachers and parents  
• Skiing program starts on January 10th  

 
ii) Nakusp Elementary School (M. Teindl) 

• Report attached  
 



 
 

 
APPROVED - Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 
2018-12-11 Regular Meeting of the Board 
 

iii) Lucerne Elementary-Secondary School (R. Farrell) 
• Report attached   

 
iv) Nakusp Secondary School (C. Dixon) 

• Discussions included:  
- Parent correspondence  
- AED News Story  
- School Band  
- School Fine Arts Grant 
- Sports Teams and field trips 

• PAC toured the school hallways to view NSS Art Projects  
 

v) District Parent Advisory Council (L. Brekke) 
No report   

 
vi) CUPE/Board Liaison (M. Teindl) 

• Report attached  
 

vii) ALTA/Board Liaison Meeting  
No report  

 
viii) Occupational Health and Safety Committee 

No report  
 

ix) Chamber of Commerce (M. Teindl) 
• Nakusp:  Report attached  
• New Denver/Silverton: No report 
 

x) Strong Start Centres (M. Teindl) 
• SZ Strong Start report attached 
 

xi) Arrow Lakes Aboriginal Educational Advisory Council  
No report  

 
d) Branch / BCSTA / BCPSEA 

 
i) Branch: Report attached 

 
ii) BCSTA:  Report attached  

 
iii) BCPSEA:  No report  

 
e) Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer: (T. Taylor) 

The Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer Report was presented at the Education Partnership 
Committee Meeting.  A copy of this report will be included as part of the Regular Meeting 
Minutes. 



 
 

 
APPROVED - Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 
2018-12-11 Regular Meeting of the Board 
 

 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS: 
 
a) 2019 Committee Structure  

  
 Moved by D. Simon, seconded by L. Brekke that the Board of Education for School District 10 (Arrow 

Lakes) approve the 2019 Committee Structure as presented.  
 

b) Community Use of School Facilities – Proposed Changes 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

a) Winter Break Office Closure 
 

Moved by D. Simon, seconded by R. Farrell that the Board of Education for School District 10 (Arrow 
Lakes) approve the annual winter Holiday office closure from Monday December 24, 2018 through 
to Friday January 4, 2019 (inclusive). 

CARRIED  
 

b) Staff Appreciation Committee 
 
c) Child Care Grant at Lucerne Elementary School 

  
Moved by D. Simon, seconded by L. Brekke that the Board of Education support application for ‘New 
Spaces Child Care’ Grant to the Ministry of Children and Family Development.  

CARRIED 
 

11. NEXT MEETING DATES: 
 

 a) Education Partnership Committee Meeting:  January 15, 2019 6:00pm 
  
 b) Regular Meeting of the Board:    January 15, 2019 7:00pm  
  
12. QUESTIONS FROM PUBLIC: 

Nil 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
M. Teindl adjourned the meeting at 7:52pm 

 
 
 

___________________________________  _______________________________________ 
M. Teindl       T. Taylor 
Chairperson      Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer 



 

 

Regular Board Meeting 
December 11, 2018 

          

  

Presented by: Shelly Woolf, CPA, CA Assistant Secretary Treasurer 
 
1. 2018-2019 Operating Budget – Spent to date $2,420,974 - 33% 

2017-2018 Operating Budget – Spent to date $2,494,585 - 34% 
 
Refer to Monthly Expenditure Report - Page 3 (Nov, 2018) and Page 4 (Nov, 2017)  

 

 Operating Budget Status – 67% remaining compared to a target amount of 67% 
 

 

2. Operating Surplus - $1,267,352 
 

Unrestricted $291,852 

Restricted  975,500 

Total $1,267,352 
 

 

 
3. 

 
2018-2019 Annual Facility Grants Budget and Other Capital Funds 
 

 

 a) Annual Facilities Grant (AFG) – Operating Grant 
 

Total $62,456 

Deducted by Ministry for CAMS  ( 5,316) 

Expended to date (15,871) 

Available AFG Operating Grant        $ 41,269 

  

 
 
  
 

 b) Annual Facilities Grant – Capital Grant (Bylaw) –no change from last report 
 

AFG 2018-2019 Capital Grant $244,547 

Expended to date 2018-2019  (126,163) 

Available AFG Capital Grant  $118,384 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  
 c) School Enhancement Program Grant (Bylaw) – 3 projects approved, 3 in progress. 

 

 NSS Dust 
Collector 

LESS Dust 
Collector 

NSS Building Envelope 
Repair 

Total 

Approved $221,110 $221,110 $174,600 $616,820 

Expended to date (242,256) (6,774) (4,207) (253,237) 

Available $(21,146) $214,336 $170,393 $363,583 

 
 

 



 

 

Regular Board Meeting 
December 11, 2018 

          

  

 d) Capital Reserve Balances  
 

Sharable (Ministry Restricted) Capital $207,089 

Local Capital 85,608 

Total $292,697 
 

 

 
 
 

 
e) Youth Trades Equipment – Total 3 Year Program Funding $368,528. 
 

 NSS LESS Total 
Approved $222,334 $146,194 $368,528 
Expended to date (196,971)   (83,073)   (280,044) 
Available   $25,363  $63,121   $88,484 

 

4. Sick Leave Cost and Budget:  $60,321 (33.5%) spent of the $180,140 budget allocation 
 
      The cost to date includes the wage and benefit costs for replacement staffing brought in to     
      cover regular employee’s sick time and/or medical appointments. 
                          
5.  1701 Data Enrollment – Funded FTE 457.4381 vs 435.4688 last year – increase 21.9693 FTE 

Staff is presently waiting for the provincial funding adjustments which are usually released 
by the government in November. 

 
6. Government & Other Reports Filed  

Statement of Financial Information 2017-2018 
 
  



05/31/18 15:05:04                                    School District No. 10                                              PAGE    1

SDS GUI                                 MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT AT NOVEMBER 30, 2017                                  ACR0L31-E

Report ID 107                                   ( Fund-Function-Object Level 1 )                                       Expenditure

Fund :   0  General Operating

                                                                                                        FULL YEAR

   O       TITLE                                              NOV      YEAR TO DATE        ENCUMBERED      BUDGET    AVAILABLE  PERC

Function : 1  Instruction

   1       Salaries                                    345,680.03      1,094,997.54                     3,610,154    2,515,156   70

   2       Emp. Benefits/Allowances                     73,014.54        264,700.29                       931,293      666,593   72

   3       Services                                     48,533.32         98,575.15                       306,560      207,985   68

   4       Services                                        308.53          2,051.02                        23,762       21,711   91

   5       Supplies And Materials                       19,329.78         85,142.70          2,007.94     196,719      109,568   56

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

    TOTAL FOR Function - 1                             486,866.20      1,545,466.70          2,007.94   5,068,488    3,521,013   69

Function : 4  District Administration

   1       Salaries                                     40,669.17        173,296.61                       451,173      277,876   62

   2       Emp. Benefits/Allowances                      7,982.50         35,133.83                       104,001       68,867   66

   3       Services                                      9,215.47         97,474.96                       208,801      111,326   53

   4       Services                                      3,560.88         19,003.01                        58,950       39,947   68

   5       Supplies And Materials                        1,678.56         10,484.44                        40,812       30,328   74

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

    TOTAL FOR Function - 4                              63,106.58        335,392.85              0.00     863,737      528,344   61

Function : 5  Operations & Maintenance

   1       Salaries                                     48,385.13        218,430.88                       549,263      330,832   60

   2       Emp. Benefits/Allowances                     10,406.01         54,884.03                       132,540       77,656   59

   3       Services                                        775.71          7,328.64                        33,030       25,701   78

   4       Services                                      1,841.37         20,363.25                        58,400       38,037   65

   5       Supplies And Materials                       20,382.38        185,278.58          7,885.34     367,260      174,096   47

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

    TOTAL FOR Function - 5                              81,790.60        486,285.38          7,885.34   1,140,493      646,322   57

Function : 7  Transportation & Housing

   1       Salaries                                     17,425.03         65,959.80                       200,099      134,139   67

   2       Emp. Benefits/Allowances                      3,990.64         17,118.59                        48,540       31,421   65

   3       Services                                        643.84         11,487.56                        32,219       20,731   64

   4       Services                                        100.00          1,051.38                         1,000           51-   5-

   5       Supplies And Materials                        8,299.76         31,822.57                        90,145       58,322   65

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

    TOTAL FOR Function - 7                              30,459.27        127,439.90              0.00     372,003      244,563   66

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

  TOTAL FOR Fund -   0                                 662,222.65      2,494,584.83          9,893.28   7,444,721    4,940,243   66



05/31/18 15:05:04                                    School District No. 10                                              PAGE    2

SDS GUI                                 MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT AT NOVEMBER 30, 2017                                  ACR0L31-E

Report ID 107                                   ( Fund-Function-Object Level 1 )                                       Expenditure

Fund : YTE  Youth Trades Equipment

                                                                                                        FULL YEAR

   O       TITLE                                              NOV      YEAR TO DATE        ENCUMBERED      BUDGET    AVAILABLE  PERC

Function : 1  Instruction

   5       Supplies And Materials                        1,657.72        128,081.67          1,674.40     115,075       14,681-  13-

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

  TOTAL FOR Fund - YTE                                   1,657.72        128,081.67          1,674.40     115,075       14,681-  13-

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

  GRAND TOTAL                                          663,880.37      2,622,666.50         11,567.68   7,559,796    4,925,562   65

                                                  ===============  ================  ================  ==========  ===========  ===



12/05/18 11:13:20                                    School District No. 10                                              PAGE    1

SDS GUI                                 MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT AT NOVEMBER 30, 2018                                  ACR0L31-E

Report ID 107                                   ( Fund-Function-Object Level 1 )                                       Expenditure

Fund :   0  General Operating

                                                                                                        FULL YEAR

   O       TITLE                                              NOV      YEAR TO DATE        ENCUMBERED      BUDGET    AVAILABLE  PERC

Function : 1  Instruction

   1       Salaries                                    374,989.52      1,148,576.41                     3,582,016    2,433,440   68

   2       Emp. Benefits/Allowances                     75,896.00        241,446.41                       873,448      632,002   72

   3       Services                                     53,858.49         98,997.59            994.63     302,888      202,896   67

   4       Services                                        255.14          1,986.87                        21,462       19,475   91

   5       Supplies And Materials                       19,158.06         56,216.27          4,511.39     199,031      138,303   69

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

    TOTAL FOR Function - 1                             524,157.21      1,547,223.55          5,506.02   4,978,845    3,426,115   69

Function : 4  District Administration

   1       Salaries                                     27,616.40        134,112.87                       492,475      358,362   73

   2       Emp. Benefits/Allowances                      2,247.03         15,559.45                        96,585       81,026   84

   3       Services                                      9,665.31        100,629.95          2,100.00     212,601      109,871   52

   4       Services                                      3,853.35         29,925.56                        18,000       11,926-  66-

   5       Supplies And Materials                        2,204.30         13,359.85                        63,135       49,775   79

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

    TOTAL FOR Function - 4                              45,586.39        293,587.68          2,100.00     882,796      587,108   67

Function : 5  Operations & Maintenance

   1       Salaries                                     44,815.22        226,575.31                       563,335      336,760   60

   2       Emp. Benefits/Allowances                      8,944.75         46,233.37                       145,350       99,117   68

   3       Services                                      2,139.93         20,617.69                        24,300        3,682   15

   4       Services                                        825.48         11,221.64         10,566.00      55,500       33,712   61

   5       Supplies And Materials                       32,713.79        149,131.60         20,316.94     363,668      194,219   53

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

    TOTAL FOR Function - 5                              89,439.17        453,779.61         30,882.94   1,152,153      667,490   58

Function : 7  Transportation & Housing

   1       Salaries                                     19,236.50         66,543.79                       203,357      136,813   67

   2       Emp. Benefits/Allowances                      3,256.02         13,344.87                        52,912       39,567   75

   3       Services                                      3,430.42         17,058.71                        29,868       12,809   43

   4       Services                                                        2,674.37                                      2,674-

   5       Supplies And Materials                       16,966.79         26,761.16                        84,046       57,285   68

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

    TOTAL FOR Function - 7                              42,889.73        126,382.90              0.00     370,183      243,800   66

                                                  ---------------  ----------------  ----------------  ----------  -----------  ---

  TOTAL FOR Fund -   0                                 702,072.50      2,420,973.74         38,488.96   7,383,977    4,924,514   67



 
 

 
 

 
School District No 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Information Submitted 
For The Fiscal Year Ending 

 
June 30, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Pursuant to the Requirements of the 

“Financial Information Act” 



School District Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) 
 

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Documents are arranged in the following order: 

2.  Approval of Statement of Financial Information 

3.  Financial Information Act Submission Checklist 

4.  Management Report 

4a. Audited Financial Statements 

5.  Schedule of Debt 

6.  Schedule of Guarantee and Indemnity Agreements 

7.  Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses including: 

 Statement of Severance Agreements 

 Reconciliation or explanation of differences to Audited Financial Statements 
 

8.  Schedule of Payments for the Provision of Goods and Services including: 

 Reconciliation or explanation of differences to Audited Financial Statements 
 

 

 
 

 

School Funding & Allocation 
01 - Table of Contents 

 Revised: August 2002 

 



NAME OF SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROVINCE

SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER

OFFICE  LOCATION(S)

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY

NAME OF SUPERINTENDENT

NAME OF SECRETARY TREASURER

DECLARATION AND SIGNATURES

6049
YEAR

TELEPHONE NUMBER

POSTAL CODE

TELEPHONE NUMBER

TELEPHONE NUMBER

EDUC. 6049 (REV. 2008/09)

SIGNATURE OF SECRETARY TREASURER

SIGNATURE OF SUPERINTENDENT

SIGNATURE OF CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION DATE SIGNED

DATE SIGNED

DATE SIGNED

We, the undersigned, certify that the attached is a correct and true copy of the Statement of Financial Information for the year ended 

for School District No.       as required under Section 2 of the Financial Information Act.

SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(SOFI)



 
 
 

Statement of Financial Information for Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Financial Information Act-Submission Checklist 
 
 

   Due Date 

a)  A statement of assets and liabilities (audited financial statements). September 30 

b)  An operational statement including, i) a Statement of Income and ii) a Statement 
of Changes in Financial Position, or, if omitted, an explanation in the Notes to 
Financial Statements (audited financial statements) 

September 30 

c)  A schedule of debts (audited financial statements). September 30 

d)  A schedule of guarantee and indemnity agreements including the names of the 
entities involved and the amount of money involved.  (Note: Nil schedules can 
be submitted December 31). 

September 30 

e)  

 

A schedule of remuneration and expenses, including: 
 
i) an alphabetical list of employees earning over $75,000, the total amount of 
expenses paid to or on behalf of each employee for the year reported and a 
consolidated total for employees earning under $75,000. If the total wages and 
expenses differs from the audited financial statements, an explanation is required. 
 
 

December 31 

  ii) a list by name and position of Board Members with the amount of any salary and 
expenses paid to or on behalf of the member 
 

 

  iii) the number of severance agreements started during the fiscal year and the 
range of months' pay covered by the agreement, in respect of excluded employees. 
If there are no agreements to report, an explanation is required 
 

 

f)  An alphabetical list of suppliers receiving over $25,000 and a consolidated total 
for those suppliers receiving less than $25,000. If the total differs from the 
Audited Financial Statements, an explanation is required. 

December 31 

g)  Approval of Statement of Financial Information. December 31 

h)  A management report approved by the Chief Financial Officer December 31 

 
 
 
School District 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

School Funding & Allocation Revised: August 2002 
03 - Financial Information Act Submission Checklist 



School District Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) 
 

                                          School District No. 10    (Arrow Lakes) 
 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
The Financial Statements contained in this Statement of Financial Information under the 
Financial Information Act have been prepared by management in accordance with 
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the integrity and objectivity of 
these statements are management's responsibility. 
 
Management is also responsible for all other schedules of financial information and for 
ensuring this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained 
in the financial statements and for implementing and maintaining a system of internal 
controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced. 
 
The Board of Education is responsible for ensuring that management fulfils its 
responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and for approving the financial 
information included in the Statement of Financial  Information. 
 
The external auditors, KPMG, LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial 
statements as required by the School Act.  Their examination does not relate to the other 
schedules of financial information required by the Financial Information Act.  Their 
examination includes a review and evaluation of the board's system of internal control 
and appropriate tests and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are presented fairly. 
 
On behalf of School District 10 (Arrow Lakes) 
 
 
Signed Original on file_________________________________ 
Name:  Superintendent Terry Taylor 
Date:  December 11, 2018 
 
Signed Original on file___________________________________ 
Name: Secretary Treasurer Terry Taylor 
Date:  December 11, 2018 
 
Prepared as required by Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 9 

Resource Management Division 
04 - Management Report 

 Revised: October 2008 

 



Audited Financial Statements of

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)

June 30, 2018

 September 10, 2018  13:14



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
June 30, 2018

Table of Contents

Management Report ...........................................................................................................................................................................................1

Independent Auditors' Report  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................2-3

Statement of Financial Position - Statement 1  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................4

Statement of Operations - Statement 2  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................5

Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt) - Statement 4  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................6

Statement of Cash Flows - Statement 5  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................7

Notes to the Financial Statements  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................8-24

Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund - Schedule 1 (Unaudited)  ..............................................................................................................25

Schedule of Operating Operations - Schedule 2 (Unaudited)  .................................................................................................................................................................26

Schedule 2A - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source (Unaudited)  ............................................................................................................27

Schedule 2B - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object (Unaudited)  .........................................................................................28

Schedule 2C - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object (Unaudited)  .....................................................................................29

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations - Schedule 3 (Unaudited)  ....................................................................................................................................................31

Schedule 3A - Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object (Unaudited)  .......................................................................................................32

.........................Schedule of Capital Operations - Schedule 4 (Unaudited)  ............................................................................................................... .     33

.........Schedule 4A - Tangible Capital Assets (Unaudited)  .........................................................................................................  34

...................Schedule 4C - Deferred Capital Revenue (Unaudited)  ........................................................................................................       35

..................................Schedule 4D - Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue (Unaudited)  ......................................................................36

 September 10, 2018  13:14



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

On behalf of School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

Version: 3721-2975-9993

The external auditors, KPMG, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally 

accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements.  The external auditors have 

full and free access to financial management of School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) and meet when required.  

The accompanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination 

and their opinion on the School District's financial statements.

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

The accompanying financial statements of School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) have been prepared by 

management in accordance with the accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and 

Accountability Act of British Columbia, supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the 

Province of British Columbia Treasury Board, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are 

management's responsibility.  Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and 

schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information 

contained in the financial statements.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide 

reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and reliable financial 

information is produced.

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's 

judgment particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with 

certainty until future periods.

The Board of Education of School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) (called the ''Board'') is responsible for 

ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and exercises 

these responsibilities through the Board.  The Board reviews internal financial statements on a monthly basis 

and externally audited financial statements yearly.

Page 1 September 10, 2018  13:14



 
 
 

 KPMG LLP 
 200 - 3200 Richter Street 
 Kelowna BC V1W 5K9 
 Canada 
 Telephone (250) 979-7150 
 Fax (250) 763-0044 

 

 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
 
To the Board of Education of School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes), and  
To the Minister of Education, Province of British Columbia 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, the statements of 
operations, changes in net financial assets (debt) and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with 
the financial reporting provisions of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability 
Act of the Province of British Columbia, and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.  



  

 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

 Page 2 
 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements of School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) as at and for the 
year ended June 30, 2018 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial 
reporting provisions of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the 
Province of British Columbia. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2(a) to the financial statements, which 
describes the basis of accounting and the significant differences between such basis of 
accounting and Canadian public sector accounting standards.  

      

 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

September 18, 2018 

Kelowna, Canada 
 
 



Statement 1

2018 2017

Actual Actual

$ $

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 992,281              1,304,027            

Accounts Receivable

Due from Province - Ministry of Education -                          11,276                

Other (Note 3) 108,750              106,375              

Portfolio Investments (Note 4) 1,952,901            1,914,814            

Total Financial Assets 3,053,932            3,336,492            

Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Other (Note 5) 734,392              712,213              

Unearned Revenue (Note 6) 19,555                -                          

Deferred Revenue (Note 7) 176,365              248,323              

Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 8) 7,047,953            6,610,949            

Employee Future Benefits (Note 9) 146,908              167,983              

Total Liabilities 8,125,173            7,739,468            

Net Financial Assets (Debt) (5,071,241)          (4,402,976)          

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible Capital Assets (Note 10) 9,777,520            9,224,932            

Prepaid Expenses 61,534                49,745                

Total Non-Financial Assets 9,839,054            9,274,677            

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) (Note 16) 4,767,813            4,871,701            

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2018

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

Approved by the Board

Contractual Obligations (Note 14)

Contingent Liabilities (Note 14)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 4



Statement 2

2018 2018 2017

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 13)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 7,715,449            7,606,489            7,756,515            

Other 18,000                18,000                19,500                

Tuition 25,500                

Other Revenue 210,000               271,501               271,344               

Rentals and Leases 6,000                  4,822                  4,694                  

Investment Income 41,600                45,837                43,160                

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 401,090               406,353               372,217               

Total Revenue 8,392,139            8,353,002            8,492,930            

Expenses (Note 15)

Instruction 5,987,759            5,671,845            5,709,738            

District Administration 764,143               735,879               693,330               

Operations and Maintenance 1,564,340            1,491,964            1,551,580            

Transportation and Housing 507,908               557,202               500,134               

Total Expense 8,824,150            8,456,890            8,454,782            

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (432,011)             (103,888)             38,148                

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, beginning of year 4,871,701            4,833,553            

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, end of year 4,767,813            4,871,701            

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 5



Statement 4

2018 2018 2017

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 13)

$ $ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (432,011)             (103,888)             38,148                

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (786,094)             (1,118,317)          (1,101,386)          

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 562,509               565,729               536,809               

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets (223,585)             (552,588)             (564,577)             

Acquisition of Prepaid Expenses (61,534)               (49,745)               

Use of Prepaid Expenses 49,745                47,007                

Total Effect of change in Other Non-Financial Assets -                          (11,789)               (2,738)                 

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt),

     before Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) (655,596)             (668,265)             (529,167)             

Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt) (668,265)             (529,167)             

Net Financial Assets (Debt), beginning of year (4,402,976)          (3,873,809)          

Net Financial Assets (Debt), end of year (5,071,241)          (4,402,976)          

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)

Year Ended June 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 6



Statement 5

2018 2017

Actual Actual

$ $

Operating Transactions

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (103,888)            38,148               

Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital

Decrease (Increase)

Accounts Receivable 8,901                 46,182               

Prepaid Expenses (11,789)              (2,738)                

Increase (Decrease)

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 22,179               7,392                 

Unearned Revenue 19,555               (72,510)              

Deferred Revenue (71,958)              13,491               

Employee Future Benefits (21,075)              (8,629)                

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 565,729             536,809             

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue (406,353)            (372,217)            

Total Operating Transactions 1,301                 185,928             

Capital Transactions

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (1,118,317)         (1,101,386)         

Total Capital Transactions (1,118,317)         (1,101,386)         

Financing Transactions

Capital Revenue Received 843,357             1,149,465          

Total Financing Transactions 843,357             1,149,465          

Investing Transactions

Investments in Portfolio Investments (38,087)              210,919             

Total Investing Transactions (38,087)              210,919             

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (311,746)            444,926             

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 1,304,027          859,101             

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 992,281             1,304,027          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year, is made up of:

Cash 992,281             1,304,027          

992,281             1,304,027          

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 7



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 1  Authority and Purpose 
 
The School District operates under authority of the School Act of British Columbia as a corporation 
under the name of "The Board of Education of School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)", and operates 
as "School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)."  A board of education (“Board”), elected for a four-year 
term, governs the School District.  The School District provides educational programs to students 
enrolled in schools in the district, and is principally funded by the Province of British Columbia 
through the Ministry of Education. School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) is exempt from federal 
and provincial corporate income taxes. 
 
Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
The financial statements of the School District are prepared by management in accordance with the 
basis of accounting described below. Significant accounting policies of the School District are as 
follows: 
 
a) Basis of Accounting  
 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget 
Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia supplemented by 
Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the Province of British Columbia Treasury Board.  
The Budget Transparency and Accountability Act requires that the financial statements be 
prepared in accordance with the set of standards and guidelines that comprise generally accepted 
accounting principles for senior governments in Canada, or if the Treasury Board makes a 
regulation, the set of standards and guidelines that comprise generally accepted accounting 
principles for senior governments in Canada as modified by the alternate standard or guideline 
or part thereof adopted in the regulation.   
 
Regulation 257/2010 requires all tax-payer supported organizations in the Schools, Universities, 
Colleges and Hospitals sectors to adopt Canadian public sector accounting standards without any 
PS4200 elections.   
 
Regulation 198/2011 requires that restricted contributions received or receivable for acquiring or 
developing a depreciable tangible capital asset or contributions in the form of a depreciable 
tangible capital asset are to be deferred and recognized in revenue at the same rate that 
amortization of the related tangible capital asset is recorded. For British Columbia tax-payer 
supported organizations, these contributions include government transfers and externally 
restricted contributions. 

 
  

8 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
The accounting policy requirements under Regulation 198/2011 are significantly different from 
the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards which requires that  

• government transfers, which do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability, be 
recognized as revenue by the recipient when approved by the transferor and the eligibility 
criteria have been met in accordance with public sector accounting standard PS3410; and 

• externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which the 
resources are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with public sector 
accounting standard PS3100.   

 
As a result, revenue recognized in the statement of operations and certain related deferred capital 
revenue would be recorded differently under Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. 

 
b)  Basis of Presentation  
 

These financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of the reporting 
entity, which is comprised of all controlled entities. Inter-departmental balances and 
organizational transactions have been eliminated.  The School District does not control any 
significant external entities and accordingly no entities have been consolidated with the financial 
statements.  The School District does not administer any trust activities on behalf of external 
parties. 

 
c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid securities that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. These 
cash equivalents generally have a maturity of three months or less at acquisition and are held for 
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investing. 
 

d) Unearned Revenue 
 
Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods and 
receipt of proceeds for services or products to be delivered in a future period. Revenue will be 
recognized in that future period when the courses, services, or products are provided. 

 
  

9 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
e) Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue 

 
Deferred revenue includes contributions received with stipulations that meet the description of 
restricted contributions in Regulation 198/2011 issued by the Treasury Board. When restrictions 
are met, deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in a manner consistent with 
the circumstances and evidence used to support the initial recognition of the contributions 
received as a liability as detailed in Note 2 (i). 

 
Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as deferred 
capital revenue and amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the statement of 
operations. This accounting treatment is not consistent with the requirements of Canadian public 
sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be recognized as revenue 
when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met unless the transfer 
contains a stipulation that creates a liability in which case the transfer is recognized as revenue 
over the period that the liability is extinguished.  
 

f) Employee Future Benefits 
 
The School District provides certain post-employment benefits including vested and non-vested 
benefits for certain employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements. 
 
The School District accrues its obligations and related costs including both vested and  
non-vested benefits under employee future benefit plans. Benefits include vested sick leave, 
accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement, retirement/severance, vacation, overtime 
and death benefits. The benefits cost is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit 
method pro-rated on service and using management’s best estimate of expected salary 
escalation, termination rates, retirement rates and mortality. The discount rate used to measure 
obligations is based on the cost of borrowing. 
 
The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the expected average 
remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of active employees covered under the plan.   
 
The most recent valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2016 and projected  
to June 30, 2018. The next valuation will be performed at March 31, 2019. For the purposes of 
determining the financial position of the plans and the employee future benefit costs, a 
measurement date of March 31 was adopted for all periods subsequent to July 1, 2004. 
 
The School District and its employees make contributions to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and 
Municipal Pension Plan.  The plans are multi-employer plans where assets and obligations are 
not separated. The costs are expensed as incurred. 

10 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 
 
Note 2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
g) Tangible Capital Assets 

 
Tangible capital assets acquired or constructed are recorded at cost which includes amounts that 
are directly related to the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement or 
betterment of the assets. Cost also includes overhead directly attributable to construction as well 
as interest costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset. 
 
Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date of donation, 
except in circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined, which are then 
recognized at nominal value. Transfers of tangible capital assets from related parties are 
recorded at carrying value. Buildings that are demolished or destroyed are written-off. 
 
Work-in-progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable asset class at substantial 
completion. 
 
Tangible capital assets are written down to residual value when conditions indicate they no 
longer contribute to the ability of the School District to provide services or when the value of 
future economic benefits associated with the sites and buildings are less than their net book 
value. The write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the Statement of Operations. 
 
Works of art, historic assets and other intangible assets are not recorded as assets in these 
financial statements. 
 
The cost, less residual value, of tangible capital assets (excluding sites), is amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.  These useful lives are reviewed on 
a regular basis or if significant events initiate the need to revise. Estimated useful life is as 
follows: 

 
Buildings 40 years 
Furniture & Equipment 10 years 
Vehicles 10 years 
Computer Software 5 years 
Computer Hardware 5 years 

  

11 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
h) Funds and Reserves 

 
Certain amounts, as approved by the Board are set aside in accumulated surplus for future 
operating and capital purposes. Transfers to and from funds and reserves are an adjustment to 
the respective fund when approved.  

 
i) Revenue Recognition 

 
Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise 
to the revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot 
be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable. 

 
Contributions received or where eligibility criteria have been met is recognized as revenue 
except where the contribution meets the criteria for deferral as described below. Eligibility 
criteria are the criteria that the School District has to meet in order to receive the contributions 
including authorization by the transferring government. 
 
For contributions subject to a legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to their use, 
revenue is recognized as follows: 
 

• Non-capital contributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and 
recognized as revenue in the year related expenses are incurred, 

• Contributions restricted for site acquisitions are recorded as revenue when the sites are 
purchased,  and 

• Contributions restricted for tangible capital assets acquisitions other than sites are 
recorded as deferred capital revenue and amortized over the useful life of the related 
assets.  

 
Donated tangible capital assets other than sites are recorded at fair market value and amortized 
over the useful life of the assets. Donated sites are recorded as revenue at fair market value when 
received or receivable. 

 
Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service is 
performed is deferred and recognized when the fee is earned or service performed. 
 
Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding party or 
related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the deferred revenue 
balance. 
 

12 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 
 
 
Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
j) Expenditures 

 
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services received 
during the year is expensed.  

 
 Categories of Salaries 

• Principals, Vice-Principals, and Directors of Instruction employed under an 
administrative officer contract are categorized as Principals and Vice-Principals. 

• Superintendents, Secretary-Treasurers, Trustees and other employees excluded from 
union contracts are categorized as Other Professionals. 

 
Allocation of Costs  

• Operating expenses are reported by function, program, and object. Whenever possible, 
expenditures are determined by actual identification. Additional costs pertaining to 
specific instructional programs, such as special and aboriginal education, are allocated to 
these programs. All other costs are allocated to related programs. 

• Actual salaries of personnel assigned to two or more functions or programs are allocated 
based on the time spent in each function and program.  School-based clerical salaries are 
allocated to school administration and partially to other programs to which they may be 
assigned. Principals and Vice-Principals salaries are allocated to school administration 
and may be partially allocated to other programs to recognize their other responsibilities. 

• Employee benefits and allowances are allocated to the same programs, and in the same 
proportions, as the individual’s salary. 

• Supplies and services are allocated based on actual program identification. 
  

13 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
k) Financial Instruments  

 
A contract establishing a financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights and obligations to 
receive or deliver economic benefits. The financial assets and financial liabilities portray these 
rights and obligations in the financial statements. The School District recognizes a financial 
instrument when it becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.  

 
Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, portfolio 
investments, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Portfolio investments include GICs, 
term deposits and bonds that have a maturity of greater than 3 months at the time of acquisition. 
 
Except for portfolio investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market that are 
recorded at fair value, all financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or amortized cost 
and the associated transaction costs are added to the carrying value of these investments upon 
initial recognition. Transaction costs are incremental costs directly attributable to the acquisition 
or issue of a financial asset or a financial liability. Interest and dividends attributable to financial 
instruments are reported in the statement of operations.  For financial instruments measured 
using amortized cost, the effective interest rate method is used to determine interest revenue or 
expense.  
 
For financial instruments recorded at fair value, unrealized gains and losses from changes in the 
fair value of financial instruments are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and 
losses. Upon settlement, the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the statement of 
remeasurement gains and losses and recognized in the statement of operations.  For the year 
ended June 30, 2018 the School District did not have any financial instruments recorded at fair 
value.  Accordingly, a statement of remeasurement gains and losses has not been presented. 
 
All financial assets are tested annually for impairment. When financial assets are impaired, 
impairment losses are recorded in the statement of operations. A write-down of a portfolio 
investment to reflect a loss in value is not reversed for a subsequent increase in value. 
 

l) Measurement Uncertainty 
 
Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 
2 a) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that impact reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the 
reporting periods. Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the 
potential impairment of assets, rates for amortization and estimated employee future benefits.  
Actual results could differ from those estimates 

 
 

14 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 
Note 3  Accounts Receivable – Other Receivables 
 
 2018 2017 
   
Due from Federal Government $   34,958 $  37,517 
Other       73,792     68,858 
   
 $ 108,750 $ 106,375 

 
 
Note 4  Portfolio Investments 
 
 2018 2017 
Investments in the  cost and amortized cost category:   

Term deposits, interest at 1.6% to 2.45%     $ 1,952,901 $ 1,914,814 
 
 
 

Note 5  Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities - Other 
  
 
 2018 2017 
   
Trade payables  $ 130,437 $ 176,778 
Salaries and benefits payable 543,520      434,307 
Accrued vacation pay    60,435      101,128 
   
 $734,392 $ 712,213 

 
Note 6    Unearned Revenue 
 
 2018 2017 
 
Balance, beginning of year 

 
$                - 

 
$     72,510 

 Increase:  International student fees        -       18,494 
Increase:  Unearned revenue for services 19,555 - 
Decrease: International student fees 
Decrease: Unearned revenue for services 

     - 
      - 

      (79,472) 
  (11,532) 

 
Balance, end of year 

 
 $      19,555          

 
$               -  

   

15 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 7  Deferred Revenue 
 
Deferred revenue includes unspent grants and contributions received that meet the description of a 
restricted contribution in Regulation 198/2011 issued by the Treasury Board, i.e., the stipulations 
associated with those grants and contributions have not yet been fulfilled. Detailed information 
about the changes in deferred revenue is included in Schedule 3A.  
 
Note 8  Deferred Capital Revenue 
 
Deferred capital revenue  includes grants and contributions received that are restricted by the 
contributor for the acquisition of tangible capital assets that meet the description of a restricted 
contribution in Regulation 198/2011 issued by the Treasury Board. Once spent, the contributions are 
amortized into revenue over the life of the asset acquired. Detailed information about the changes in 
deferred capital revenue is included in Schedules 4C and 4D.  
 
Note 9  Employee Future Benefits 
 
Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement, 
retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits. Funding is provided when the benefits 
are paid and accordingly, there are no plan assets.  Although no plan assets are uniquely identified, 
the School District has provided for the payment of these benefits.  
 
 2018 2017 

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation 
Accrued Benefit Obligation – April 1  $  117,577    $ 122,580 
Service Cost         9,293         9,314 
Interest Cost         3,275           3,104 
Benefit Payments      (4,978)        (16,533) 
Increase in obligation due to Plan Amendment            -           - 
Actuarial Loss (Gain)           (10,870)        (888) 
 
Accrued Benefit Obligation – March 31 

 
$   114,297 

 
   $  117,577 

 
Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Fiscal Year 
Accrued Benefit Obligation – March 31 $  (114,297)   $  (117,577) 
Employer Contributions After Measurement Date 23,949                                      - 
Benefits Expense After Measurement Date         (3,090)           (3,142) 
Unamortized Net Actuarial Loss (Gain)       (53,470)         (47,264) 
 
Accrued Benefit Asset (Liability) – June 30 

 
$  (146,908) 

 
   $  (167,983) 

 
 
 

16 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 
Note 9  Employee Future Benefits (Continued) 
 2018 2017 

Reconciliation of Change in Accrued Benefit Liability 
Accrued Benefit Liability – July 1  $ 167,983    $ 176,612 
Net expense for Fiscal Year        7,853         7,904 
Employer Contributions     (28,927)        (16,533) 
 
Accrued Benefit Liability – June 30 

 
$ 146,908 

 
   $ 167,983 

   
Components of Net Benefit Expense 
Service Cost $     9,268    $   9,309 
Interest Cost        3,248           3,146 
Immediate Recognition of Plan Amendment            -           - 
Amortization of Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss       (4,664)           (4,551) 
 
Net Benefit Expense (Income) 

 
$     7,853 

 
   $   7,904 

 
The significant actuarial assumptions adopted for measuring the School District’s accrued benefit 
obligations are:  
 
Discount Rate – April 1 2.75% 2.50% 
Discount Rate – March 31 2.75% 2.75% 
Long Term Salary Growth – April 1 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority 
Long Term Salary Growth – March 31 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority 
EARSL – March 31    7.9 years    7.9 years 

 
  

17 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 10 Tangible Capital Assets 
 
 
Net Book Value 

 
  Net Book 

Value 2018 
  Net Book 

Value 2017 
 
Sites 

 
$    362,514 

 
$    362,514 

Buildings    8,286,815    7,879,621 
Furniture & Equipment       451,169       228,643 
Vehicles       561,396       666,840 
Computer Hardware        115,626       87,314 
 
Total 

 
$ 9,777,520 

 
$ 9,224,932 

 
June 30, 2018 

 Opening Cost Additions Disposals 
       Total 
        2018 

 
Sites 

 
$      362,514 

 
$                 - 

 
$              - 

 
$     362,514 

Buildings    18,094,227       770,160        -   18,864,387 
Furniture & Equipment        385,008       261,027       30,225        615,810 
Vehicles                 1,357,030 30,259 382,453 1,004,836 
Computer Hardware        142,795        56,871       43,202        156,464 
 
Total 

 
$20,341,574 

 
$ 1,118,317 

 
     $  455,880 

 
$21,004,011 

 

 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Amortization Additions Disposals 

           Total 
            2018 

     
 
Sites 

 
$                 - 

 
$             - 

 
$              - 

 
$                - 

Buildings    10,214,606       362,966        -   10,577,572 
Furniture & Equipment        156,365        38,501       30,225        164,641 
Vehicles     690,190     135,703         382,453    443,440 
Computer Hardware       55,481       28,559       43,202        40,838 
 
Total  

 
$  11,116,642   

 
$ 565,729 

 
$ 455,880 

 
  $11,226,491 

18 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 10 Tangible Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
June 30, 2017 

 Opening Cost Additions Disposals 
       Total 
        2017 

 
Sites 

 
$    362,514 

 
 $              - 

 
 $                 - 

 
$     362,514 

Buildings  17,194,013     900,214        -   18,094,227 
Furniture & Equipment       382,034       27,465 24,491       385,008 
Vehicles    1,222,259      154,908 20,137    1,357,030 
Computer Hardware      164,470        18,799 40,474        142,795 
 
Total 

 
$19,325,290 

 
$1,101,386 

 
$        85,102 

 
$20,341,574 

   

  

  
Opening 

Accumulated 
Amortization Additions Disposals 

     Total  
      2017 

 
Sites 

 
$                  - 

 
$              - 

 
   $               - 

 
$                - 

Buildings  9,871,120   343,486     -    10,214,606 
Furniture & Equipment     142,653     38,203       24,491       156,365 
Vehicles     588,101   122,226    20,137       690,190 
Computer Hardware      63,061     32,894 40,474         55,481 
 
Total 

 
$10,664,935 

 
$ 536,809 

 
$ 85,102 

 
$11,116,642 

 
  

19 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 11  Employee Pension Plans  
 

The School District and its employees contribute to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal 
Pension Plan (jointly trusteed pension plans). The boards of trustees for these plans, representing 
plan members and employers, are responsible for administering the pension plans, including 
investing assets and administering benefits. The plans are multi-employer defined benefit pension 
plans. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2015, the Teachers’ 
Pension Plan has about 46,000 active members and approximately 38,000 retired members. As of 
December 31, 2017, the Municipal Pension Plan has about 197,000 active members, including 
approximately 24,000 from school districts.  
 
Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plans 
and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and 
member contribution rate to fund the plans. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on 
the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer 
contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plans. This rate is 
then adjusted to the extent there is amortization of any funding deficit.  
 
The most recent actuarial valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Plan as at December 31, 2014, 
indicated a $449 million surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.  
 
The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2015, 
indicated a $2,224 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. 
 
The School District paid $596,951 for employer contributions to the plans for the year ended 
June 30, 2018 (2017: $581,408) 

 
The next valuation for the Teachers’ Pension Plan was at December 31, 2017, with results 
available in 2018. The next valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 
2018, with results available in 2019.  
 
Employers participating in the plans record their pension expense as the amount of employer 
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is 
because the plans record accrued liabilities and accrued assets for each plan in aggregate, 
resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to 
individual employers participating in the plans. 
 

  

20 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 12 Related Party Transactions 
 
The School District is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia 
ministries, agencies, school districts, health authorities, colleges, universities, and crown 
corporations.  Transactions with these entities, unless disclosed separately, are considered to be in 
the normal course of operations and are recorded at the exchange amount. 
 
Note 13 Budget Figures 
 
Budget figures included in the financial statements were approved by the Board through the 
adoption of the annual budget on May 2, 2017.  An amended annual budget, which reflected 
adjustments in revenues and expenses, was adopted by the Board on February 20, 2018.   
 
 2018 Annual 

Budget 
 

Adjustments 
2018 Amended 

Budget 
    
Revenues:    

Provincial Grants – Ministry of 
Education 

  
$  7,715,449 

 
$ (147,903) 

 
$   7,567,546 

Provincial Grants - Other 18,000 - 18,000 
Other Revenue 210,000 69,737 279,737 
Rentals and Leases 6,000 - 6,000 
Investment Income 41,600 - 41,500 
Amortization of Deferred Capital 

Revenue 
 

401,090 
 

              
- 

 
401,090 

Total Revenue 8,392,139 (78,166) 8,313,973 
    
Expenses:    

Instruction 5,987,759 (304,179) 5,683,580 
District Administration 764,143 36,919 801,062 
Operations and Maintenance 1,564,340                            2 1,564,342 
Transportation and Housing 507,908 2,755 510,663 

Total Expenses 8,824,150 (264,503) 8,559,647 
    
Deficit for the year $  (432,011)   $  186,337 $    (245,674) 
  

21 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 14 Contractual obligations, commitments and contingencies 
 
a) Asset retirement obligation 

 
Legal liabilities may exist for the removal/disposal of asbestos in schools that will undergo 
major renovations or demolition.  The fair value of any liability for asbestos removal or disposal 
will be recognized in the period in which it is incurred.  As at June 30, 2018 this liability is not 
reasonably determinable. 

 
b) Operating commitments 
 

i)     Software support and maintenance contract 
The School District has an ongoing agreement for software support and maintenance related 
to the School District’s accounting system. The contract will automatically renew on an 
annual basis unless terminated by either party upon giving to the other not less than 90 days 
written notice prior to the end of the initial term or any subsequent anniversary of such date.  
No notice was given prior to the expiry date of June 30, 2018 and the annual support and 
maintenance fee for the 2018-2019 fiscal year will be $41,367. 

 
ii)  Propane contract 

The School District, in partnership with School District No. 8, has entered into a contract for 
the purchase of propane with an expiry date of September 30, 2018. Based on minimum 
contracted volumes and fixed contracted prices, the annual fee for the School Districts 
would be $60,956. The future estimated payments for this contract over the next year is 
$2,184. 

 
 
Note 15 Expense by Object 
   
 2018 2017 
   
Salaries and benefits  $ 6,267,720 $ 6,229,509 
Services and supplies    1,623,441    1,688,464 
Amortization 565,729 536,809 
  

$ 8,456,890 
 

$ 8,454,782 
 
 
  

22 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Note 16 Internally Restricted Surplus – Operating Fund 
 
Internally Restricted (appropriated) by Board for:   
Utilities, Equipment & Capital Projects $      305,500  
Emergency 
Professional Learning 
Financial Software Transition 
Strategic Plan Goals/School Configuration 
Long Range Facilities Plan 

        250,000 
          90,000 
        100,000 
        100,000 
        100,000 

 

Board Scholarship           30,000  
Subtotal Internally Restricted           975,500 
Unrestricted Operating Surplus            478,413 
Total Available for Future Operations  $    1,453,913 
 

Note 17 Economic Dependence 

The operations of the School District are dependent on continued funding from the Ministry of 
Education and various governmental agencies to carry out its programs.  These financial statements 
have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
 

Note 18 Risk Management 
 

The School District has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: credit 
risk, market risk and liquidity risk.  
 
The Board ensures that the School District has identified its risks and ensures that management 
monitors and controls them.  
 
a) Credit risk:  

 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to an institution if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Such risks arise principally from 
certain financial assets held consisting of cash, amounts receivable and investments.  
 
The School District is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by a borrower. 
This risk is mitigated as most amounts receivable are due from the Province and are collectible.  
 
It is management’s opinion that the School District is not exposed to significant credit risk 
associated with its cash deposits and investments as they are placed in recognized British 
Columbia institutions and the School District invests solely in term deposits. 

23 
 



 
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 
Note 18 Risk Management (Continued) 

 
b) Market risk: 

 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk is comprised of currency risk and 
interest rate risk.  
 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in the foreign exchange rates. It is management’s opinion that the 
School District is not exposed to significant currency risk, as amounts held and purchases made 
in foreign currency are insignificant.  
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The School District is exposed to 
interest rate risk through its investments. It is management’s opinion that the School District is 
not exposed to significant interest rate risk as they invest solely in term deposits that have a 
maturity date of no more than 3 years.  
 

c) Liquidity risk:  
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the School District will not be able to meet its financial obligations 
as they become due.  
 
The School District manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and forecasted cash 
flows from operations and anticipated investing activities to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the School District’s 
reputation. 

 
Risk Management and insurance services for all School Districts in British Columbia are provided 
by the Risk Management Branch of the Ministry of Finance. 

 
   

 
 

24 
 



Schedule 1 (Unaudited)

2018 2017

Operating Special Purpose Capital Actual Actual

Fund Fund Fund

$ $ $ $ $

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 1,559,621            3,312,080            4,871,701            4,833,553            

Changes for the year

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (3,316)                  57,138                 (157,710)              (103,888)              38,148                 

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (102,392)              (57,138)                159,530               -                           

Net Changes for the year (105,708)              -                           1,820                   (103,888)              38,148                 

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), end of year - Statement 2 1,453,913            -                           3,313,900            4,767,813            4,871,701            

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 25



Schedule 2 (Unaudited)

2018 2018 2017

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 13)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 7,020,461          7,047,608          7,253,927          

Other 18,000               18,000               19,500               

Tuition 25,500               

Other Revenue 38,972               40,623               

Rentals and Leases 6,000                 4,822                 4,694                 

Investment Income 40,000               44,171               41,500               

Total Revenue 7,084,461          7,153,573          7,385,744          

Expenses

Instruction 5,139,909          4,937,573          5,044,199          

District Administration 764,143             735,879             693,330             

Operations and Maintenance 1,140,491          1,061,938          1,097,554          

Transportation and Housing 369,248             421,499             377,908             

Total Expense 7,413,791          7,156,889          7,212,991          

Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (329,330)            (3,316)               172,753             

Budgeted Appropriation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 329,330             

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (102,392)            (46,225)             

Total Net Transfers -                        (102,392)            (46,225)             

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                        (105,708)            126,528             

Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 1,559,621          1,433,093          

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 1,453,913          1,559,621          

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year

Internally Restricted (Note 16) 975,500             997,603             

Unrestricted 478,413             562,018             

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 1,453,913          1,559,621          

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Schedule of Operating Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 26



Schedule 2A (Unaudited)

2018 2018 2017

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 13)

$ $ $

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education 7,020,461          6,887,577          7,067,546          

Other Ministry of Education Grants

Pay Equity 40,560               40,560               

Funding for Graduated Adults -                        856                    

Transportation Supplement 42,675               42,675               

Economic Stability Dividend 2,633                 2,389                 

Return of Administrative Savings 36,091               36,091               

Carbon Tax Grant 10,399               10,113               

Student Learning Grant 22,103               

Foundation Skills Assessment 4,094                 4,094                 

Shoulder Tappers Grant 17,079               17,500               

Regional Outreach -                        10,000               

Skills Access Grant 5,000                 

MyEd Grant 1,500                 

Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 7,020,461          7,047,608          7,253,927          

Provincial Grants - Other 18,000               18,000               19,500               

Tuition

International and Out of Province Students -                        -                        25,500               

Total Tuition -                        -                        25,500               

Other Revenues

Miscellaneous

Art Start Grants 5,450                 15,600               

Donations 3,900                 2,470                 

Growing Innovations 1,000                 1,000                 

Sale of Assets 12,845               21,553               

School District 5 1,000                 -                        

District Entered 14,777               

Total Other Revenue -                        38,972               40,623               

Rentals and Leases 6,000                 4,822                 4,694                 

Investment Income 40,000               44,171               41,500               

Total Operating Revenue 7,084,461          7,153,573          7,385,744          

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 27



Schedule 2B (Unaudited)

2018 2018 2017

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 13)

$ $ $

Salaries

Teachers 2,398,461          2,403,816          2,357,645          

Principals and Vice Principals 589,240             570,308             591,678             

Educational Assistants 398,604             389,681             346,124             

Support Staff 684,364             720,651             680,264             

Other Professionals 555,026             553,989             554,172             

Substitutes 153,379             147,499             220,329             

Total Salaries 4,779,074          4,785,944          4,750,212          

Employee Benefits 1,257,697          1,139,914          1,101,650          

Total Salaries and Benefits 6,036,771          5,925,858          5,851,862          

Services and Supplies

Services 385,338             285,585             348,787             

Student Transportation -                        25,136               4,853                 

Professional Development and Travel 248,858             214,412             273,780             

Rentals and Leases 350                    243                    259                    

Dues and Fees 22,000               14,090               16,508               

Insurance 38,451               25,070               35,490               

Interest -                        -                        -                        

Supplies 466,593             447,190             451,384             

Utilities 215,430             219,305             230,068             

Total Services and Supplies 1,377,020          1,231,031          1,361,129          

Total Operating Expense 7,413,791          7,156,889          7,212,991          

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Schedule of Operating Expense by Object

Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 28



Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Principals and Educational Support Other

Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total

Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 2,149,252            228,923               88,903                103,026               2,570,104            

1.03 Career Programs -                          

1.07 Library Services 9,987                  9,987                  

1.08 Counselling 92,170                92,170                

1.10 Special Education 136,310               44,527                373,712               554,549               

1.30 English Language Learning -                          

1.31 Aboriginal Education 26,084                5,316                  15,969                47,369                

1.41 School Administration 278,100               66,664                344,764               

1.60 Summer School -                          

1.61 Continuing Education -                          

1.62 International and Out of Province Students -                          

Total Function 1 2,403,816            556,866               389,681               165,554               -                          103,026               3,618,943            

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration 13,442                189,430               202,872               

4.40 School District Governance 55,890                55,890                

4.41 Business Administration -                          140,254               140,254               

Total Function 4 -                          13,442                -                          -                          385,574               -                          399,016               

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 74,519                74,519                

5.50 Maintenance Operations 345,609               74,586                29,832                450,027               

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 18,983                18,983                

5.56 Utilities -                          

Total Function 5 -                          -                          -                          364,592               149,105               29,832                543,529               

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 19,310                 19,310                

7.70 Student Transportation 190,505               14,641                205,146               

Total Function 7 -                          -                          -                          190,505               19,310                14,641                224,456               

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Functions 1 - 9 2,403,816            570,308               389,681               720,651               553,989               147,499               4,785,944            

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Page 29
Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14



Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction

1.03 Career Programs

1.07 Library Services

1.08 Counselling

1.10 Special Education

1.30 English Language Learning

1.31 Aboriginal Education

1.41 School Administration

1.60 Summer School

1.61 Continuing Education

1.62 International and Out of Province Students

Total Function 1

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration

4.40 School District Governance

4.41 Business Administration

Total Function 4

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration

5.50 Maintenance Operations

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds

5.56 Utilities

Total Function 5

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration

7.70 Student Transportation

Total Function 7

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9

Total Functions 1 - 9

Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018 2018 2017

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and Actual Budget Actual

Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies (Note 13)

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

2,570,104            621,504               3,191,608            284,901               3,476,509            3,649,630            3,637,368            

-                          -                          15,354                15,354                6,975                  6,549                  

9,987                  3,092                  13,079                14,646                27,725                29,746                57,635                

92,170                21,612                113,782               1,308                  115,090               79,029                86,896                

554,549               148,841               703,390               77,694                781,084               863,519               765,208               

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

47,369                7,808                  55,177                22,463                77,640                66,550                73,200                

344,764               80,020                424,784               19,387                444,171               444,460               397,043               

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          20,300                

3,618,943            882,877               4,501,820            435,753               4,937,573            5,139,909            5,044,199            

202,872               40,761                243,633               28,562                272,195               298,925               272,700               

55,890                821                     56,711                33,238                89,949                102,930               88,117                

140,254               33,786                174,040               199,695               373,735               362,288               332,513               

399,016               75,368                474,384               261,495               735,879               764,143               693,330               

74,519                18,132                92,651                5,335                  97,986                99,924                100,892               

450,027               105,322               555,349               146,510               701,859               785,462               707,409               

18,983                5,145                  24,128                18,660                42,788                39,675                39,247                

-                          -                          219,305               219,305               215,430               250,006               

543,529               128,599               672,128               389,810               1,061,938            1,140,491            1,097,554            

19,310                3,960                  23,270                -                          23,270                22,882                21,438                

205,146               49,110                254,256               143,973               398,229               346,366               356,470               

224,456               53,070                277,526               143,973               421,499               369,248               377,908               

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

4,785,944            1,139,914            5,925,858            1,231,031            7,156,889            7,413,791            7,212,991            

Page 30
Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14



Schedule 3 (Unaudited)

2018 2018 2017

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 13)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 694,988             558,881             502,588             

Other Revenue 210,000             232,529             230,721             

Total Revenue 904,988             791,410             733,309             

Expenses

Instruction 847,850             734,272             665,539             

Operations and Maintenance -                        -                        39,443               

Total Expense 847,850             734,272             704,982             

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year 57,138               57,138               28,327               

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (57,138)             (57,138)             (28,327)             

Total Net Transfers (57,138)             (57,138)             (28,327)             

Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        -                        -                        

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year -                        -                        

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations

Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 31



Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Annual Learning School Ready, Coding and Classroom Classroom

Facility Improvement Generated Strong Set, Curriculum Priority Enhancement Enhancement

Grant Fund Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Implementation Measures Fund - Overhead Fund - Staffing TOTAL

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year 187,224              29,563                31,536                248,323              

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 62,454                27,823                96,000                12,250                7,043                104,964                -                          61,925                125,323              497,782              

Other 221,670              221,670              

62,454                27,823                221,670              96,000                12,250                7,043                104,964                -                          -                          61,925                125,323              719,452              

Less: Allocated to Revenue 62,454                27,823                232,529              96,000                12,250                7,043                104,964                29,563                31,536                61,925                125,323              791,410              

Deferred Revenue, end of year -                          -                          176,365              -                          -                          -                        -                            -                          -                          -                          -                          176,365              

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 62,454                27,823                96,000                12,250                7,043                104,964                29,563                31,536                61,925                125,323              558,881              

Other Revenue 232,529              232,529              

62,454                27,823                232,529              96,000                12,250                7,043                104,964                29,563                31,536                61,925                125,323              791,410              

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 1,648                35,824                  1,199                  24,832                100,462              163,965              

Educational Assistants 21,569                56,934                28,685                107,188              

-                          21,569                -                          56,934                -                          1,648                35,824                  1,199                  24,832                28,685                100,462              271,153              

Employee Benefits -                          6,254                  21,732                445                   8,025                    87                       6,704                  2,601                  24,861                70,709                

Services and Supplies 5,316                  232,529              17,334                12,250                4,950                61,115                  28,277                30,639                392,410              

5,316                  27,823                232,529              96,000                12,250                7,043                104,964                29,563                31,536                61,925                125,323              734,272              

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers 57,138                -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                            -                          -                          -                          -                          57,138                

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (57,138)               (57,138)               

(57,138)               -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                            -                          -                          -                          -                          (57,138)               

Net Revenue (Expense) -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                            -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Page 32
Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14



Schedule 4 (Unaudited)

2018 2017

Budget Invested in Tangible Local Fund Actual

(Note 13) Capital Assets Capital Balance

$ $ $ $ $

Revenues

Investment Income 1,600 1,666 1,666 1,660 

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 401,090         406,353 406,353         372,217 

Total Revenue 402,690         406,353 1,666 408,019         373,877 

Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 423,849         430,026 430,026         414,583 

Transportation and Housing 138,660         135,703 135,703         122,226 

Total Expense 562,509         565,729 - 565,729         536,809 

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (159,819)        (159,376) 1,666 (157,710)        (162,932)           

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 57,138           159,530 159,530         74,552 

Total Net Transfers 57,138           159,530 - 159,530         74,552 

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (102,681)        154 1,666 1,820 (88,380) 

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 3,228,756 83,324           3,312,080      3,400,460         

Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of year 3,228,910 84,990           3,313,900      3,312,080         

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Schedule of Capital Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018 Actual

Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 33



Schedule 4A (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer

Sites Buildings Equipment Vehicles Software Hardware Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost, beginning of year 362,514 18,094,227         385,008 1,357,030           - 142,795 20,341,574         

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Purchases from:

Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 638,023 638,023 

Deferred Capital Revenue - Other 74,999 245,765 320,764 

Operating Fund 15,262 30,259 56,871 102,392 

Special Purpose Funds 57,138 57,138 

- 770,160 261,027 30,259 - 56,871 1,118,317           

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 30,225 382,453 43,202 455,880 

- - 30,225 382,453 - 43,202 455,880 

Cost, end of year 362,514 18,864,387         615,810 1,004,836           - 156,464 21,004,011         

Work in Progress, end of year - 

Cost and Work in Progress, end of year 362,514 18,864,387         615,810 1,004,836           - 156,464 21,004,011         

Accumulated Amortization, beginning of year 10,214,606         156,365 690,190 - 55,481 11,116,642         

Changes for the Year

Increase:  Amortization for the Year 362,966 38,501 135,703 28,559 565,729 

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 30,225 382,453 43,202 455,880 

Written-off During Year - - 

- 30,225 382,453 - 43,202 455,880 

Accumulated Amortization, end of year 10,577,572         164,641 443,440 - 40,838 11,226,491         

Tangible Capital Assets - Net 362,514 8,286,815           451,169 561,396 - 115,626 9,777,520           

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Tangible Capital Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 34



Schedule 4C (Unaudited)

Bylaw Other Other Total

Capital Provincial Capital Capital

$ $ $ $

Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year 6,061,643          49,465 30,025 6,141,133          

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Capital Additions 638,023 74,999 245,765 958,787 

638,023 74,999 245,765 958,787 

Decrease:

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 402,266 2,747 1,340 406,353 

402,266 2,747 1,340 406,353 

Net Changes for the Year 235,757 72,252 244,425 552,434 

Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 6,297,400          121,717 274,450 6,693,567          

Work in Progress, beginning of year - 

Changes for the Year

Net Changes for the Year - - - - 

Work in Progress, end of year - - - - 

Total Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 6,297,400          121,717 274,450 6,693,567          

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 35



Schedule 4D (Unaudited)

MEd Other

Bylaw Restricted Provincial Land Other

Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance, beginning of year 2,299 275,119 192,398 469,816 

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 724,280 724,280 

Provincial Grants - Other 115,075 115,075 

Investment Income 4,002 4,002 

724,280 4,002 115,075 - - 843,357 

Decrease:

Transferred to DCR - Capital Additions 638,023 74,999 245,765 958,787 

638,023 74,999 245,765 - - 958,787 

Net Changes for the Year 86,257 (70,997) (130,690) - - (115,430) 

Balance, end of year 88,556 204,122 61,708 - - 354,386 

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes)
Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Version: 3721-2975-9993

 September 10, 2018  13:14 Page 36



School District Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) 
 

                      School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 
 
                        Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF DEBT 
 
 

Information on all long term debt is included in the School District Audited Financial 
Statements.  
 
 
 
 

Prepared as required by Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 4 

School Funding & Allocation 
05 - Schedule of Debt 

 Revised: August 2002 

 



School District Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) 
 

                        School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 
 
                        Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENTS 
 
 

School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) has not given any guarantee or indemnity under the 
Guarantees and Indemnities Regulation. 
 
 
 
 

Prepared as required by Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 5 

School Funding & Allocation 
06 - Schedule of Guar & Indem 

 Revised: August 2002 

 



SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 (ARROW LAKES)
SCHEDULE OF REMUNERATION AND EXPENSE              
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NAME                          POSITION REMUNERATION $ * EXPENSE $ **

ELECTED OFFICIALS :

Brekke, Lora Lee                                      Board Chair 13,100.04$                      5,586.59$                   
De Courcy, Quinn P.                                   Board Trustee 11,100.06                         1,817.88                     
Farrell, Rhonda                                      Board Trustee 10,600.08                         2,203.34                     
Struck, Judy                                          Board Trustee 10,600.08                         922.50                        
Teindl, Melissa                                      Board Vice - Chair 11,100.06                         342.70                        
                                                 TOTAL ELECTED OFFICIALS                              56,500.32                         10,873.01                   

DETAILED EMPLOYEES > 75,000.00  :

Bardati, Richard                                      Teacher 86,536.55                         -                               
Barisoff, Christina                                  Teacher 92,008.64                         305.66                        
Barisoff, Ken                                        Teacher 84,923.23                         2,486.40                     
Boswell, Dorian                                       Teacher 86,458.55                         2,020.36                     
Boswell, Sheryl                                       Teacher 84,295.93                         1,005.24                     
Cook, Brent                                           Vice-Principal 97,445.24                         4,563.42                     
Flesaker, Julia                                      Teacher 86,458.55                         445.65                        
Gajda, Peter                                         Principal 118,238.48                      3,250.03                     
Graves, Nicholas                                     Principal 118,299.55                      5,063.81                     
Greenhalf, Keith                                      Teacher 75,057.08                         16,813.96                   
Hibberson, Michael                                  Principal 117,598.75                      1,994.81                     
Jenkins, Heather                                      Teacher 86,404.15                         2,061.98                     
Kipkie, Scott                                         Teacher 93,158.98                         942.42                        
Leitch, Leslie                                        Teacher 86,549.17                         200.46                        
Marsden, Karen                                        Teacher 86,127.08                         -                               
Martin, Patrick                                       IT Manager 89,668.63                         1,323.81                     
McGregor, Lindsay                                     Teacher 79,979.72                         2,471.36                     
Momeyer, Erika C.                                     Teacher 86,196.46                         534.85                        
Newman, Lorna                                        Director of Learning 136,471.36                      10,365.52                   
Olson, Arthur. G                                     Operations Manager 95,382.54                         5,910.85                     
Parkstrom, Gary                                       Teacher 76,285.07                         319.90                        
Roberts, Marsha                                       Teacher 85,980.46                         672.14                        
Sumrall, Katrina R.                                   Teacher 75,303.46                         733.63                        
Taylor, Terry E.                                     Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer 194,698.98                      41,147.52                   
Wiseman, Tessa                                        Teacher 93,534.39                         414.01                        
                                                TOTAL DETAILED EMPLOYEES > 75,000.00               2,413,061.00                   105,047.79                

TOTAL EMPLOYEES <= 75,000.00                       3,162,723.37                   48,182.32                   
                                                
TOTAL                                              5,632,284.69$                 164,103.12$              

*  Remuneration may include payments for amounts that were earned in previous years.

07 - Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses

**Expenses are defined in accordance with Financial Information Regulation S6(1), are shown at gross amounts and do not reflect 
reimbursements/recoveries from third party organizations.



School District Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) 
 

                          School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 
 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 
 

STATEMENT OF SEVERANCE AGREEMENTS 
 
 

There were no severance agreements made between School District No.10 (Arrow Lakes) and its 
non-unionized employees during fiscal year 2017/2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared as required by Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 6(7) 

School Funding & Allocation 
08 - Severance (NIL) 

 Revised: August 2002 

 



SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 (ARROW LAKES)

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS FOR GOODS AND SERVICES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

VENDOR NAME EXPENSE $

DETAILED VENDORS > $25,000.00  :

AKHURST                                                               46,454.24$         

B.C. HYDRO & POWER AUTH.                                             106,661.17         

BC TEACHERS FEDERATION 50,249.27           

BCTF SALARY INDEMNITY FUND 43,548.58           

BRENDA FITZNER                                                        25,914.10           

CASTLE FUELS INC                                                     39,603.75           

CAYENTA                                                               44,461.83           

CDW CANADA INC.                                                     30,973.21           

CRANBROOK INTERIOR WOODWORK                                           45,864.00           

CUPE LOCAL 2450 27,062.93           

D & G MECHANICAL                                                      62,029.33           

ENERGY TECHNOLOGY PRODUCTS                                           33,609.00           

HANSON ELECTRIC LTD.                                                  47,205.26           

HERITAGE ROOFING & SHEET METAL LTD.                                  155,269.80         

JPAC PLUMBING INC.                                                    29,011.60           

KAMLOOPS COMPUTER CENTRE                                             26,634.23           

KMS TOOLS & EQUIPMENT LTD                                             63,751.53           

MADDEN TIMBER CONSTRUCTION INC.                                       25,893.00           

MINISTER OF FINANCE                                                  147,101.86         

MUNICIPAL PENSION PLAN 258,551.36         

NAKUSP AUTO PARTS                                                     48,352.85           

PACIFIC BLUE CROSS                                                  126,350.26         

PEBT IN TRUST                                                         116,997.27         

RECEIVER GENERAL (See notes on file-total ER & EE included) 1,344,021.05     

RENEW TECHNOLOGIES INC.                                             137,010.94         

SUPERIOR PROPANE INC                                                  75,027.51           

TEACHERS' PENSION PLAN 904,836.96         

THOMAS & COMPANY LOCKSMITHING LTD                                     50,996.34           

TORBRAM ELECTRIC SUPPLY                                               35,996.98           

VILLAGE OF NAKUSP                                                    26,297.48           

WOOD WYANT INC                                                       27,749.85           

WORKSAFE BC (EFT pmt so find through gl detail) 40,603.59           

X10 NETWORKS                                                         28,398.50           

                                                             

TOTAL DETAILED VENDORS > $25,000.00                                4,272,489.63     

TOTAL VENDORS <= $25,000.00                                          1,114,313.07     

TOTAL PAYMENTS FOR GOODS AND SERVICES                          5,386,802.70$   

GRANTS PAID TO OTHERS 1,000.00$           



SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 (ARROW LAKES)

PAYMENTS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT RECONCILIATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SCHEDULED PAYMENTS

     REMUNERATION                                                 5,632,284.69$     
     EMPLOYEE EXPENSES                                                164,103.12           

     EMPLOYER CPP/EI                                                283,515.44           

     PAYMENTS FOR GOODS AND SERVICES                               5,386,802.70       
     GRANTS PAID TO OTHERS 1,000.00               

     TOTAL SCHEDULED PAYMENTS                                      11,467,705.95     

RECONCILIATION ITEMS
     NONCASH ITEMS:
          ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACCRUALS                                       85,354.88             
          PAYROLL ACCRUALS                                                (107,535.33)         
          INVENTORIES AND PREPAIDS                                         (11,790.04)            
     PAYMENTS INCLUDED:
          TAXABLE BENEFITS                                            (96,272.94)            

          EMPLOYEE PAID AMOUNTS (340,868.37)         

            TEACHERS PENSION PLAN (457,703.81)         

            MUNICIPAL PENSION PLAN (139,246.74)         

            RECEIVER GENERAL (1,060,505.61)      

     OTHER:
          THIRD PARTY RECOVERIES                                      (181,440.83)         

          GST/HST REBATE                                             (71,387.92)            

          RECOVERIES OF EXPENSES                                           -                         

          MISCELLANEOUS  (unallocated adjustments)            (76,831.24)            

BALANCE 9,009,478.00$     

FINANCIAL STATEMENT EXPENDITURES

     OPERATING FUND                                                        7,156,889.00$     

     SPECIAL PURPOSE FUNDS 734,272.00           

     CAPITAL FUND                                                          565,729.00           

     TOTAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT EXPENDITURES                                8,456,890.00       

     DEDUCT:

             AMORTIZATION (565,729.00)         

     ADD:
             CAPITALIZED EXPENSES 1,118,317.00       

BALANCE                                                           9,009,478.00$     



 

 

Regular Board Meeting 
November 29, 2018 

          

  

Date Prepared:  November 29, 2018 
 
Submitted by: Shelly Woolf, CPA, CA, Assistant Secretary Treasurer 
 
Subject:  2018 Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) 

 
 
Purpose 
To respectfully request that the Board receive and approve the 2018 Statement of Financial 
Information (SOFI) as presented. 
 
Background 
This report is submitted to the Board of Trustees for approval as required under the Financial 
Information Act: 

2   (1) A corporation must prepare statements of financial information in accordance with this 

section in a form and containing information prescribed by the Lieutenant Governor in Council. 

    (3) Within 6 months after the end of each fiscal year of a corporation, it must prepare a 

statement of financial information for that fiscal year that includes the following: 

(a) a schedule showing 

(i) in respect of each employee earning more than a prescribed amount, the total 

remuneration paid to the employee and total amount paid for the employee's 

expenses, and 

(ii) a consolidated total of all remuneration paid to all other employees; 

             (b) a schedule showing 

(i) the total amount paid to each supplier of goods or services during the fiscal 

year that is greater than a prescribed amount, and 

(ii) a consolidated total of all other payments made to suppliers of goods or 

services during that fiscal year. 

 

Additionally, the Financial Information Regulation sets out the prescribed amounts and further 

explains how to prepare the information in a prescribed manner. 

 
Following Board approval and adding the required signatories, the 2018 Statement of Financial 
Information will be submitted to the Ministry and posted to the District website as required. 
 



 

 

Regular Board Meeting 
November 29, 2018 

          

  

Attached to this cover report and for your information is the 2018 Statement of Financial 
Information. 
 
A notable difference between the Statement of Financial Information and the Audited Financial 
Statements is that the District’s Financial Statements are prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting whereas the Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses and the Schedule of Payments 
for Goods and Services included in the SOFI report are both based on the cash basis of 
accounting. A reconciliation is included at the end of the report that balances these statements 
to the District’s audited Financial Statements.  The difference in accounting between these two 
reports is significant because it highlights the fact that the SOFI report is prepared in a 
prescribed manner primarily for the purpose of stating amounts paid to/on behalf of specific 
employees (>$75,000) and amounts paid to specific vendors (>$25,000) regardless of timing, the 
District’s revenues and/or reimbursements of expense. It is primarily a statement of payments 
only and is used to support the government’s transparency requirement. Readers of the 
information are therefore encouraged to also review the audited financial statements contained 
therein as they provide additional contextual information that help explain some of the changes 
in both of the payment schedules.  
 
Below is a brief summary of the financial information included in the Schedule of Remuneration 
and Expense and the Schedule for the Payment of Goods and Services.  
 
Schedule of Remuneration and Expense 
This schedule shows remuneration and expenses paid to and/or on behalf of all employees in 
the District.  Board Trustees and employees earning over $75,000 are shown separately where- 
as all other amounts are grouped together. The Financial Information Act Regulation specifies 
what is included and/or excluded in these amounts.  
 

“remuneration"   

(a) includes any form of salary, wages, bonuses, gratuities, taxable benefits, payment into trust 

or any form of income deferral paid by the corporation to the employee or on behalf of 

the employee during the fiscal year being reported upon, whether or not such 

remuneration is reported under the Income Tax Act (Canada), and 

(b) does not include anything payable under a severance agreement; 

 
 
 



 

 

Regular Board Meeting 
November 29, 2018 

          

  

"expenses"   

(a) includes travel expenses, memberships, tuition, relocation, vehicle leases, 

extraordinary hiring expenses, registration fees and similar amounts paid directly to an 

employee, or to a third party on behalf of the employee, and which has not been 

included in "remuneration", 

(b) is not limited to expenses that are generally perceived as perquisites, or bestowing 

personal benefit, and may include expenditures required for employees to perform their 

job functions, and 

(c) excludes benefits of a general nature applicable to all employees pursuant to an 

agreement such as medical, dental, counselling, insurance and similar plans; 

 
In 2018 remuneration paid to employees earning over $75,000 amounted to $2,413,061 
compared to $2,264,009 in 2017 and expenses for these same employees amounted to 
$105,048 compared to $51,936 in 2017. The higher amount for remuneration includes salary 
and benefit increases and some individuals received vacation time payouts that were earned in 
previous periods but paid out in 2018. Expenses paid on behalf of the employees are higher than 
in the previous year to ensure consistency with the regulation as explained above as well as 
increased reimbursement amounts. (For example the District received $66,500 in 2017-2018 
from the Recruitment and Retention Workforce Sustainability Fund (RRWSF) agreement which 
covered approximately 40% of the total expenses listed on the Schedule of Remuneration and 
Expense.  
 
Superintendent Remuneration and Travel 
Attached to this report is a descriptive summary of the travel expenses incurred by the 
Superintendent. This is not part of the SOFI report but is provided to the Board because the 
Superintendent’s remuneration and expenses are often a topic of discussion and debate in the 
wider community. In most Districts the superintendent not only earns the most but also incurs 
the most travel if the District is located outside the lower mainland.  Higher travel costs result 

The amounts included in this year’s schedule are higher than in previous years and are based 
on the definitions stated above which were also confirmed by Ministry staff.  Specifically, 
amounts paid directly to employees even for school supplies and other business related 
expenses paid directly to the employee are included in expenses, whereas in previous years 
these were excluded. In addition, amounts that were reimbursed by third parties were 
excluded in previous years whereas this year they were included. For the current year, 
amounts related to (b) above amounted to approximately $34,000 and expenses reimbursed 
by other agencies amounted to approximately $181,000. 



 

 

Regular Board Meeting 
November 29, 2018 

          

  

primarily because they work on behalf of their respective Boards to ensure concerns and issues 
are heard at the provincial level.  Travelling out of region often includes mileage, airfare, 
accommodations and other related costs.  Additionally, engaging in pilot and/or collaborative 
projects promoted by various educational agencies also involves significant time and travel. 
Readers are encouraged to review the 2017-2022 District Strategic Plan which identifies the 
focus areas and outcomes. District travel and professional learning costs are incurred in support 
of these goals. 
 
Schedule of Payments for Goods and Services 
In 2018 payments > $25,000 to vendors amounted to $4,272,490 compared to $3,430,727 in 
2017. Most of the changes in this schedule relate to different vendors hired to complete the 
various construction projects approved and funded as part of the District’s Capital Plan.  All 
other amounts are comparable to previous years and mostly relate to payments for payroll 
deductions and benefits. 
 



December 11, 2018 Regular Meeting 
Trustee Report - Melissa Teindl 

 
 

Board Chair –  

4 Trustees attend BCSTA Academy down in Vancouver.  It was a great opportunity to hear from many of 
our partner groups as Trustees and really bond together as a board and discover the role of the Trustee.  
Registration for the Trustee orientation in January opened Last Monday December 3 and at this time we 
have all been registered.  I’m looking forward to attending and hope that we can all make it.  I spoke 
with Minister Rob Fleming on Friday to discuss our districts priorities and challenges.  This was a quick 
12 minutes conversation but I was able to discuss how being a rural district has its challenges with small 
numbers and area not only between our schools within our district but from other larger communities.  I 
also discussed the need and want to work with Selkirk College to be able to offer skills training and 
trades in our high schools.  To finish off my conversation we also discussed our strategic plan. 

NES PAC – November 21, 2018 

Discussed the hot lunch program, the decision was made to sponsor the soup option.  Soup in the 
second term will cost $1.00 or there is still the option of bigger meals for $5.00.  Their Chair has stepped 
down and it was decided to wait until their January meeting to elect a new chair.  There was a Nakusp 
Elementary PAC Facebook page at one time, and parents would like to pursue possibly getting it going 
again.  Still looking at possibly creating other positions such as grant writer, fundraiser and program 
coordinator but have decided to table this until the New Year.  Next meeting is January 17th at 7pm in 
the NES Library. 

Education Transformation – November 21, 2018 

We discussed the K-9 Reporting Pilot project and heard from all Partner groups.  We also discussed the 
redesigned Graduation Program and for the Primary and Intermediate teachers it was a great 
opportunity for them to learn more about it. 

CUPE Liaison – December 11, 2018 

Discussed Pro-D options for EA’s for the January 21st Pro-D day and what would best work for the EA’s.  
The focus for this pro-d day is mental health and well-being.  We will be having the author of the book 
“The Well Teacher”.  Discussed changes with EA postings at both NES and LESS.  Next meeting will be 
January 15th. 

ALTA Liaison – December 11, 2018 

We did not meet, meeting will be re-scheduled 

 

 

 

 



Nakusp Chambers –  

Light up the lights parade and activities occurred last Friday evening.  There was a community Christmas 
party on Saturday for children and a free movie this past Sunday. 

Aboriginal Education –  

Nothing to report at this time.  Next meeting will be in January. 



REPORT – December 11, 2018 
 
 
DPAC –  
  
 
OH&S –  
-next meeting is January 24 
 
BCSTA and Branch 
-4 trustees and the S/ST attended the BCSTA Academy at the end of November 
-there were 580 trustees attending from across the province – 46% new trustees 
-great 2 days of meetings and learning 
-the Minister of Education and BCSTA signed the new Memorandum of Understanding between 
the province and BCSTA 
-great opening keynote speech by George Couros who talked of our digital footprint and gave a 
different spin on the use of digital devises in our society 
-the Kootenay Boundary Branch held their meeting one morning – several new trustees in the 
Branch 
 -there will be a motion building meeting in January 
 - we will meet again at the AGM in April 
 
Provincial Council- 
-met at the Academy 
-looked at policies that were submitted as emergent  
-approved the interim budget 
-next meeting will be in February 2019 



Trustee Report to Board, December 11, 2018 

 

The LESS PAC meeting was on December 4, 2018.   

It was a very brief meeting, with only 3 parents in attendance.  There was only one request for a 
financial contribution towards the youth choir for $100, and it was approved.   

PAC Monday morning breakfasts continue with good attendance. 

School activities were in the Principal's Report.   

 

The Chamber of Commerce – has not met.  They are hosting a Christmas Dance this Saturday and I will 
be there! 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Rhonda Farrell 



Good day to all, 
 
I'm happy to report on our small but busy StrongStart Outreach program in the Southern Zone. The 
enrolment is at 20 with 16 attending regularly. I feel blessed to facilitate this program and support our 
remote families. 
 
Tuesday's in Edgewood continues to be a great opportunity for preschool children to mix with the k-7 
students during lunch hour. Currently there are 3 regulars, with talk of more as an Edgewood family 
moved back. We have a family coming from Fauquier each week wanting to connect their 2 littles with 
older students as Karson will likely attend EES 2020. The reading center is a regular part of these 
families. Although attendance is low, impact is big and very important to this isolated community. 
 
Wednesday's is busy in BES with many regulars and visiting siblings at lunch hour. Hard to believe just 4 
years ago we had many 0 attendance days in this beautiful building. The gym time continues to be a 
highlight and we have some very lovely circle times with these numbers. 
 
I'm happy to report that Thursday's have the largest attendance Fauquier has seen in many years! With 
6 or more preschool filling the old room with joy. We push tables aside and create a foam gross motor 
obstacles course after snack to burn off some energy as we don't have a gym to access. 
 
Merry Christmas to all & welcome to our new board members. 
 
With joy, 
Jodi McLean 
 



 

Superintendent’s Report – December 11th, 2018  

1 

  
 

1. Child Care Grant and potential additional child care space at Lucerne School  
 A group of interested parents and child care professionals who are forming a non-profit society met with 

the Superintendent, Manager of Operations and Lucerne School Principal to discuss community needs for 
additional child care and potential space at Lucerne School  

 The team considered several Ministry grants to provide capital funding for upgrading unused and 
decommissioned classroom space at Lucerne School in New Denver 

 Up to $1 M in capital grants is available from the New Spaces Childcare fund and we are considering 
applying for this funding 

 As a first step, early childhood educators in New Denver drafted a survey with input from the school and 
the survey will be sent to parents this week  

 The childcare survey will assess child care needs and be distributed to families from Enterprise Creek, Red 
Mountain, Silverton, New Denver, Rosebery and Hills  

 During and after school care were discussed with a tentative plan to provide child care from 8 am to 5 or 6 
pm Monday to Friday including Pro-D days and school holiday periods 

 Were a non-profit group to approach the district about child care spaces in Nakusp, the district would 
consider pursuing this option as we know adequate child care is a critical need in our communities  
 

2. December Enrollment notes – another small enrollment increase 
 Enrolment is up again slightly this month with two more students registering at Edgewood School  
 This brings district enrolment up two since October 2018 which saw five more students than September 
 Below is the monthly enrolment chart by school and grade: 

 
 

 
3. Playground Equipment Ordered with Spring Installation  
 At long last, we have completed the consultation process at Lucerne School with staff, parents and the 

Slocan Lake Early Learning Society for input on their ideas to replace the two playground structures 
identified in a 2017 audit 

 Equipment should arrive in early spring for installation as soon as the weather cooperates! 
 

4.  M in STEM Pop-Ups  

          December 11, 2018  
           Superintendent/Secretary Treasurer Report         
              Presented at the Education Partnership Committee,    
                 and Regular Meeting of the Board of Education 
            
 



 

Superintendent’s Report – December 11th, 2018  

2 

 On February 5th at NES, a Mathematics professor from UBC and her research assistant will be working with 
students and staff at NES to design interesting math problems and solutions that will be shared with 
parents and families during the evening on February 6th  

 Dr. Cynthia Nicol from UBC and doctoral student, Lindsay Reynolds, will host an M in STEM Family Night 
session at Lucerne on the evening of February 5th and for NES families on the 6th  

 During the school day on February 6th, our Arrow Lakes DL School students and their parents will be 
engaging in math problems and puzzles with the UBC mathematics experts  

 SD 10 student results in mathematics have been improving over the past few years and we look forward to 
working with parents and families deepening ways to support the learning of their children, as well as 
learning more ways to engage our students and teachers in critical and creative thinking numeracy  

 The UBC M in STEM team will return to the district in the spring to work with high school students, 
teachers and families as well as our Southern Zone schools 
 

5. Ministry Special Education Audit  
 The district has received notice that during the week of March 11th, we will have an audit team from the 

Ministry visit to audit Special Education files  
 Audits ensure that all the appropriate documentation is completed accurately and that provision of 

services to students who are claimed for Special Education funding is in keeping with assessments 
 Lorna Newman, our Director of Learning, is working hard with Learning Support teachers and principals and 

vice-principals to organize files and prepare for the audit 
 

6. District Plan for Learning (a sneak preview of our new website)  
 Executive Assistant/HR Manager Michelle Grenier and Superintendent Taylor have been hard at work 

along with local web designer, Nikta Bouramand, to create a more engaging website telling the story of 
learning in our school district  

 Evidence of student learning, our plans to enhance learning and results will be shared on the site 
 Our Plan for Learning aligns with the Ministry of Education Policy for Student Success and the Framework 

for Enhancing Student Learning  
 

7. “Community Career Connections” – a film about our secondary students exploring careers in community  
 Our latest SD 10 film documents secondary school students from NSS and Lucerne working with local 

timber frame builders from Dave Madden Construction as they construct the outdoor classroom at Nakusp 
Elementary School  

 The second half of the film features another career community connection as our students work and learn 
alongside a solar engineer, local electrician and school district carpenters to install solar grids on NES and 
NSS roofs 

 Many thanks to local filmmaker, Isaac Carter from iCandy films for his film documentation of these hands-
on community projects as well as Dave Madden and his crew for taking the risk to have students work on a 
big timber frame project! 

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/kindergarten-to-grade-12/understanding_the_bc_policy_for_student_success.pdf


 

 
2019 – School District 10  
Committees and Representatives 

 
 

 
 

Page 1 of 3 
External Reference:  
For definition of Standing and Special Committees, see BY-LAW NO. 14, A Bylaw to provide for the organization and operation of the Board  

 

Special Committees 

 
Committee 

 

 
Description 

 

 
Trustee 

 
Arrow Lakes Aboriginal 
Education Advisory Council  
 

One Trustee belongs to the district Aboriginal Council to 
gather and bring info from the council, back to the Board 
of Education.  

Danyea Simon 
Christine Dixon (A) 

ALTA (Arrow Lakes 
Teachers Association 
/Board Liaison Committee) 
 

One Trustee sits on this committee along with ALTA Union 
President, Superintendent and HR staff. 

Melissa Teindl 
Lora Lee Brekke (A) 

Audit Committee All Trustees sit on this committee along with the 
Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer and Assistant 
Secretary-Treasurer for the annual Budget Consultation 
process. 
 

 

Calendar Committee One Trustee acts as a representative of the Board to sit 
with representatives from partner groups to meet annually 
and plan the school district calendar on a three year plan. 

Chris Dixon 
Melissa Teindl (A) 
 
 

CUPE (Canadian Union of 
Public Employees) 
/Board Liaison Committee 
 

One Trustee sits on this committee along with CUPE 
representatives, Superintendent and Human Resources 
staff. 

Melissa Teindl  
Lora Lee Brekke (A) 

DPAC (District Parent 
Advisory Committee)  

One Trustee is invited to DPAC meetings to provide and 
update on District and report back to Board of Education at 
regular meetings. 
 

Lora Lee Brekke 
Melissa Teindl (A) 

Educational 
Transformation Committee 

One Trustee serves on this committee to help inform and 
plan for the new curriculum changes, along with the 
Superintendent and representatives from our partner 
groups. 
 

Chris Dixon 
Rhonda Farrell (A) 

IT (Information Technology) 
Committee 
 

One Trustee sits on this district committee which helps 
inform policy, decisions and planning for information 
technology in the district. 
 

Rhonda Farrell 
Danyea Simon (A) 

OH&S (Occupational Health 
and Safety) 

One Trustee and District OH&S representatives meet 
throughout the school year. 

Lora Lee Brekke 
Danyea Simon (A) 
 

  



 

 
2019 – School District 10  
Committees and Representatives 

 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 3 
External Reference:  
For definition of Standing and Special Committees, see BY-LAW NO. 14, A Bylaw to provide for the organization and operation of the Board  

 

Special Committees 

 
Committee 

 

 
Description 

 

 
Trustee 

 
 
PAC (Parent Advisory 
Committee)  
 

 
 
Trustees are invited guests to School PACs 
Each Trustee reports to their assigned PAC a summary of 
proceedings from the Board of Education and reports key 
points from PAC back to Board of Education at regular 
meetings of the Board. 

• Burton Elementary 
• Edgewood Elementary 
• Lucerne Elementary-Secondary 
• Nakusp Elementary 
• Nakusp Secondary 

 

 
 
BES: Danyea Simon 
EES:  Danyea Simon 
Lucerne: Rhonda Farrell 
NES:  Melissa Teindl  
NSS:  Christine Dixon  
 
(The Board Chair is alternate 
for all seats) 

Policy Committee All Trustees sit on this committee along with the 
Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer, to develop, review, 
or amend Board Policy.  
 

 

Scholarship Committee 
 

Two Trustees sit as an interview team to consider students 
for District/Provincial Scholarship(s) members from the 
public may sit on this committee as well. 
 

Rhonda Farrell    
Melissa Teindl   

Shared Use Agreements 
Committee  

One Trustee acts as a representative of the Board to sit 
with the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer or other 
district staff to meet as needed with group(s) we have a 
shared use agreement with. 
 

Rhonda Farrell 
Danyea Simon (A) 

Staff Appreciation 
Committee 

Trustees (not limited) sit on this committee for the 
purposes of planning the annual Board - Staff Appreciation 
celebration hosted in the spring.  

Lora Lee Brekke 
Melissa Teindl  
Chris Dixon  
 

  



 

 
2019 – School District 10  
Committees and Representatives 

 
 

 
 

Page 3 of 3 
External Reference:  
For definition of Standing and Special Committees, see BY-LAW NO. 14, A Bylaw to provide for the organization and operation of the Board  

 

External Committees 

 
Committee 

 

 
Description 

 
Trustee 

BCPSEA (British Columbia 
Public Schools Employers 
Association)  

One Trustee acts as a representative to BCPSEA for SD10 
Arrow Lakes. 

Melissa Teindl 
Lora Lee Brekke (A) 

BCSTA (British Columbia 
School Trustees 
Association) Kootenay 
Boundary Branch 

One Trustee either elected by the Board of Education or as 
an elected executive on KBB provides a brief summary of 
KBB/BCSTA proceedings at regular meetings. 

Lora Lee Brekke 
Melissa Teindl (A) 

BCSTA Provincial Council 
(PC) 

 

One Trustee to attend and report to and from PC regarding 
BCSTA business and advocacy. 

Lora Lee Brekke 
Melissa Teindl (A) 

Chambers of Commerce One Trustee shall serve as liaison between Chamber of 
Commerce and the Board. 

Nakusp: Chris Dixon  
Melissa Teindl (A) 
 
New Denver/Silverton: 
Rhonda Farrell  
Lora Lee Brekke (A) 
 

OLRC (Okanagan Labour 
Relations Council)  

One Trustee acts as a representative to OLRC as a Director 
to serve on the Board. One Alternate Director will be a 
Senior Administrative Official of the District.  

Lora Lee Brekke 
Terry Taylror (A) 

 



 

General Administration   Date: September 8, 2015 
G-06 School and District Facilities   Updated/Revised: August 2017  
Page 1 of 2 

SD10 (Arrow Lakes) District Protocol 
 
Community Use of School and District Facilities 
 
 
 

Overview:  
Although the prime function of school district facilities and buildings is to support 
student learning, the Board of Education is committed to making our facilities accessible 
to the community when possible. Shared Use agreements, short-term rentals or no-cost 
use of school facilities are therefore supported with the underlying premise that these 
arrangements always consider that students are at the centre of all we do in SD 10. 
 
Approval for Short Term Use of School Facilities 

1. Groups interested in using a school for the purpose of meetings or activities must 
fill in a “School Use Agreement” form at the school. 

2. The school’s Principal does the initial approval for short term or single 
community use of their school facilities on the Use of School Facilities form. 

3. The Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer does the final approval on all Use of 
School Facilities forms.  

4. Supervision of students, parents, and community members using school facilities 
is the responsibility of the school Principal.  

5. Applications for Short Term Use of School Facilities are not to exceed one year 
and must be for the current school year only. 
 

Fee Rental  
Fees as set out in this protocol help offset additional custodial and maintenance costs in 
our schools due to community use.  

6. A schedule of fees based on the type of organization renting school facilities and 
based on duration is attached. 

7. The Assistant Secretary-Treasurer is responsible for collecting fees in cash or 
cheque for rental of school facilities through Accounts Receivable.  

8. Fees collected are deposited to the district account and are shown in the district 
budget.  

 
Liability Insurance Coverage  

9. All staff, parents and students are covered for liability by the School Protection 
Program should an accident or injury occur on school facilities or on school-
related business.  

10.  Other community groups must have their own liability insurance while using 
school facilities, as they are not covered by the SPP insurance.  

11. Groups or individuals without liability insurance use the school facilities at their 
own risk. 
 

Custodians, Unlocking of Doors 

 



 

General Administration   Date: September 8, 2015 
G-06 School and District Facilities   Updated/Revised: August 2017  
Page 2 of 2 

12. All community school use activities are communicated to the school’s custodial 
staff, who act on behalf of the principal after school hours to admit groups to the 
building and ensure that the building is secured afterwards.  

13. A half hour before the use of the school, the custodian will unlock the main access 
door in the school to allow entrance. After the activity is completed, the doors 
will. At the end of the event, doors will be locked and secured.  

14. Non-profit groups are exempt from usage fees if the School District does not incur 
additional costs as a result of the school use.  

15. Where facilities requested are limited to one room and are for a one time use 
during regular school operating days (Monday-Friday) and months (September-
June) a modest short term rental fee of $15/hour or $100/day for individuals or 
for profit organizations is to be charged. 

16. For recreational programs scheduled to span part of, or for the duration of the 
school year, a flat rate of $200/term will be charged for individuals or for profit 
organizations. This rate is based on one day per week at a maximum use of 3.0 
hours per session. Additional hours will be charged at the hourly rate of $15/hour. 

17. Where facilities requested are during non-regular school operating days 
(Saturday-Sunday) or months (July-August) the rental fee will be based on 
estimated costs for custodial time.  

 
Shared Use Agreements 

18. Certain community groups have entered into shared use or partnership 
agreements with the school district in use of school facilities. Fees or in-kind 
contributions are specified in each individual shared use agreement. 

19. Additional fees for school use are generally not charged given that there is already 
contribution, with the exception of additional custodial costs incurred on 
weekends or school holidays, or use that expands the regular custodial workload. 

20. Use of school facilities forms are required for the community organization’s use of 
school property to assist in school scheduling and custodial communication in 
those schools with full time student attendance. 

 
Facility Use Regulations  

21. Only the specific rooms or parts of the building or school property as specified 
and as approved in the Application for Community Use are to be used. All other 
rooms or parts of the building or school property, other than washrooms will be 
considered off limits.  

22. Individuals or groups using school property will be held responsible for all 
damage to the building, furniture, or fixtures. 

23. School equipment, unless approved as part of the Application for Community Use 
is not permitted for use. 

24. Alcohol is not permitted on school property.  
25. Smoking is not permitted on school property.  

 
 
 

 


	Nov 2018 Board Financial Report - Complete.pdf
	Nov 2018 Board Financial Report
	November 30, 2017 Report 107
	Report 107 November 30, 2018

	SOFI Report - June 30, 2018.pdf
	00 - Cover Page
	01 - Table of Contents
	02 - Form 6049
	03 - Financial Information Act Submission Checklist
	04 - Management Report
	2018 Financial Statements Final
	2017-18-fs-notes Final.pdf
	Note 1  Authority and Purpose
	Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
	Note 2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
	As a result, revenue recognized in the statement of operations and certain related deferred capital revenue would be recorded differently under Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.
	Note 2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
	The School District accrues its obligations and related costs including both vested and  non-vested benefits under employee future benefit plans. Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement, retirement/seve...
	The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of active employees covered under the plan.
	The most recent valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2016 and projected  to June 30, 2018. The next valuation will be performed at March 31, 2019. For the purposes of determining the financial position of the plans and the employee f...
	The School District and its employees make contributions to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal Pension Plan.  The plans are multi-employer plans where assets and obligations are not separated. The costs are expensed as incurred.

	Note 2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
	Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
	Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
	Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
	Note 3  Accounts Receivable – Other Receivables
	Note 4  Portfolio Investments
	Note 5  Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities - Other
	Note 6    Unearned Revenue
	Note 8   Deferred Capital Revenue
	Note 9   Employee Future Benefits
	Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Fiscal Year

	Note 9   Employee Future Benefits (Continued)
	Components of Net Benefit Expense

	Note 10 Tangible Capital Assets
	Note 10 Tangible Capital Assets (Continued)
	Note 11  Employee Pension Plans
	Note 14 Contractual obligations, commitments and contingencies
	Note 15 Expense by Object
	Note 16 Internally Restricted Surplus – Operating Fund
	Note 18 Risk Management
	Note 18 Risk Management (Continued)


	05 - Schedule of Debt
	06 - Schedule of Guar & Indem
	Remuneration Adjusted after review 11192018
	Remuneration Final

	08 - Severance (NIL)
	Schedule of Goods and Services for PDF Package
	Payment of Goods & Services

	Reconciliation after review adjustments
	Reconciliation

	Reconciliation after review adjustments.pdf
	Reconciliation

	Reconciliation after review adjustments.pdf
	Reconciliation

	Remuneration Adjusted after review 11192018.pdf
	Remuneration Final



	Name of School District: Arrow Lakes
	Year: 2017/2018
	Office Location: 98 6th Avenue NW
	Telephone Number: 250-265-3638
	Mailing Address: Box 340
	City: Nakusp
	Province: BC
	Postal Code: V0G 1R0
	Superintendent: Terry Taylor
	Secretary Treasurer: Terry Taylor
	Sup: 
	 Tel: 250-265-3638

	ST Tel: 250-265-3638
	SD Number: 10
	Year End: June 30, 2018


